Public Document Pack

Rutland County Council
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP
Telephone 01572 722577 Email: governance@rutland.gov.uk

Ladies and Gentlemen,
A meeting of the EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE will be held virtually,
via Zoom https://zoom.us/j/93410817190 on Wednesday, 7th July, 2021
commencing at 7.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to attend.
Yours faithfully

Mark Andrews
Chief Executive
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record,
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available atwww.rutland.gov.uk/mycouncil/have-your-say/

AGENDA
1)

APOLOGIES

2)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any
disclosable interests under the Code of Conduct and the nature of those
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3)

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the Employment and Appeals Committee meeting
held on 16 February 2021, previously circulated.

4)

PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS
To receive any petitions, deputations and questions received from members of
the public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 93.
The total time allowed for this shall be 30 minutes. Petitions, deputations and
questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received.

5)

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS
To consider any questions received from Members of the Council in
accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 95.

6)

NOTICES OF MOTION
To consider any Notices of Motion from Members submitted under Procedure
Rule 97.

7)

ANNUAL REPORT
To receive Report No.69/2021 from the Strategic Director for Resources.
(Pages 3 - 8)

8)

APPRENTICESHIP ACTION PLAN
To receive Report No.67/2021 from the Strategic Director for Resources.
(Pages 9 - 14)

9)

FUTURE WAYS OF WORKING
To receive Report No.68/2021 from the Strategic Director for Resources.
(Pages 15 - 22)

10) ANY URGENT BUSINESS
To receive items of urgent business which have previously been notified to the
person presiding.

---o0o--DISTRIBUTION
MEMBERS OF THE EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE:
Mr G Brown (Chairman)
Mr K Bool
Mrs S Harvey
Miss G Waller

Mr J Dale
Mrs R Powell
Mr N Woodley

OTHER MEMBERS FOR INFORMATION

Agenda Item 7
Report No: 69/2021
PUBLIC REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE
7 July 2021

ANNUAL REPORT
Report of the Strategic Director for Resources
Strategic Aim:

All

Exempt Information

No

Cabinet Member(s)
Responsible:

Mr O Hemsley, Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for
Policy, Strategy and Partnerships, Economy and Infrastructure

Contact Officer(s): Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic
Director for Resources
Carol Snell, Head of Human
Resources
Ward Councillors N/A

01572 758159
Sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk
01572 720969
csnell@rutland.gov.uk

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee:
Approves the annual report of the Employment and Appeals Committee.

1

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To set out the work of the Committee for the periods 2019-20 and 2020-21 in an
annual report in line with best practice. An annual report was not submitted to
Committee in 2020 as meetings were reduced/cancelled due to Covid.

2

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE

2.1

The Employment and Appeals Committee is a Committee of the Council, with
powers delegated to it by the Council as set out in its Terms of Reference:
 To establish panels to appoint Chief Officers, Officers that are part of the
Strategic Management Team, or Officers that report directly to the Director for
People. Such Panels to consist of three members plus the relevant Cabinet
Member. Political balance applies to the panel.
 To consider employee procedures, including dismissal procedures.
 To hear, consider and determine appeals against dismissal by employees.

3

 The constitution of any special human resources panels or working parties as
may be required from time to time.
 The discharge of such human resources functions that cannot be delegated
under statute to the Cabinet or have not been delegated to officers, as may be
delegated by the Council from time to time.
 To consider and approve HR policies (this requires two thirds voting members
present to approve a policy subject to its financial impact not exceeding the
virement threshold of the Director for Resources). If this cannot be achieved the
policy in question will be referred to Full Council for further consideration and
determination.
 Appeals panels
a) To hear, consider and determine any other appeals made under a statutory
appeals process and/or where no other appeals body has been established for
the specific purpose. This will include:i) Access to Personal Files
ii) Approved Marriage Premises
iii) Curriculum Complaints
iv) Home to School Transport
v) Housing Improvement Renovation or Repair Grants
vi) Discretionary Rate Relief (NNDR)
vii) Children’s Social Services Complaints
The Panel will consist of three members drawn from the Committee. For this
purpose, officers may draw upon members with training relevant to the subject
matter of the appeal in order to ensure sufficient members are available to conduct
the hearing, and to avoid involving any member who was involved in the original
decision which is the subject of the appeal. Panel members should not be a
representative of the Ward of the appellant. Panels should consist of three members
of the Committee, with the exception of (vii) which should comprise two members of
the committee and an independent chair. Political balance applies to the panel.
3

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR 2019/20

3.1

The Committee used its delegated powers to approve the following HR policies
during the year:

3.1.1

Employment and Appeals Committee 16 July 2019
 Gender Pay Gap data for 31 March 2019. This report highlighted the changes to
data for the reporting periods 2017 and 2018. Our detailed analysis has identified
that natural changes through the year such as turnover and recruitment, is the
highest contributor to fluctuating changes. We are satisfied that our existing

4

policies manage any risk of equal pay claims and also provide for robust
recruitment and promotion that supports fairness and equity of treatment.
3.1.2

Employment and Appeals Committee 18 February 2020
 Standby Policy – our existing policy had been in place since 2016. We have
provision within the National Joint Council for Local Government Services
(Green Book) to negotiate and agree local arrangements for standby. The
payment provision for staff on standby is dependent on (a) the frequency of the
standby and (b) the level of accountability/decision making. Members approved
in February 2020 an uplift to the rates which had not changed since 2016.
Members also approved an annual review of the rates based on the NJC Pay
award.

3.2

No policies were referred to Full Council for consideration.

3.3

It was not necessary for the Committee to hear any dismissal appeals during the
year.

3.4

There were no other appeal panels during the municipal year.

4

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR 2020/21

4.1

The Committee used its delegated powers to approve the following HR policies
during the year.

4.1.1

Employment and Appeals Committee 29 September 2020
 Relocation Policy – This policy provides the Council with scope to support a new
employee to relocate. Whilst it is not a widely used policy as most of our
appointments are local/regional, it is a useful attraction and recruitment tool.
Members had been presented with an updated policy in February 2020 and
approved an uplift in the maximum contribution. They also requested some
further clarity regarding provision for employees who may be renting a property
rather than purchasing. Based on further research, it was confirmed that there
would be parity in provision for both situations.
 Special Leave – Paid Parental Bereavement Leave. In April 2020 the
government introduced new legislation – the Parental Bereavement Leave and
Pay Act – this provides for 2 weeks leave if an employee loses a child under the
age of 18; this would be paid leave if the employee has at least 26 weeks service.
The Council therefore reviewed its own local policy on paid special leave and
approved an extension of our current paid special leave for all staff and all
emergency circumstances, to up to 10 paid days at normal pay – irrespective of
the length of service.
 Apprenticeships – Members were updated on the new Apprenticeship
programme, the levy and target for local authorities and in particular, how
Rutland Council had been performing against those targets. We also took the
opportunity for one of our current Apprentices to present to the Committee and
this provided a really useful insight. It was agreed that the Apprenticeship
strategy would be presented to Employment and Appeals Committee in due
course.

5

4.1.2

Employment and Appeals Committee16 February 2021
 Apprenticeship Strategy – the purpose of the strategy is to give a clear statement
of our commitment to recruiting Apprenticeships and supporting existing staff
through Apprenticeship qualifications as an integral part of our recruitment and
employee development plans. It was acknowledged that 2020 had hindered our
progress but we had taken this opportunity to fully reflect on our strategy and
plans ahead. This has led to an action plan which is presented to Members at
this Committee as Report 67/2021.
 Gender Pay Gap – this report provided the Committee with our data for the period
as at 31 March 2020. As expected, we once again saw a variation to previous
year’s data due to recruitment and turnover and movements within a pay band.
Of interest in this data, there is a lower percentage of men in the Upper Quartile
compared to previous years and this has had an impact on reducing the average
hourly rate and median hourly rate for men. We are required to publish data ‘as
at 31 March 2021’ by 30 March 2022 and this will be reported to Employment
and Appeals Committee.

4.2

No policies were referred to Full Council for consideration.

4.3

It was not necessary for the Committee to hear any dismissal appeals during the
year.

4.4

There were no other appeal panels during the municipal year.

5

APPOINTMENTS BY A CHIEF OFFICER APPOINTMENTS PANEL

5.1

Members of Employment and Appeals Committee have taken part in the following
Chief Officer Appointments
 Deputy Director Places – 4 February 2020 – appointment of Penny Sharp
 Strategic Director Places – 6 October 2020 – appointment of Penny Sharp
 Chief Executive – 28 April 2021 – appointment of Mark Andrews.
 Strategic Director for Children and Families – 17 June 2021- appointment of
Dawn Godfrey
 Strategic Director for Adults and Health – 17 June 2021 – appointment of John
Morley

6

CONSULTATION

6.1

There are no consultation requirements.

7

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

7.1

The purpose of the report is to provide a summary of previous issues considered by
Employment and Appeals Committee – this is considered best practice. The
alternative option would be not to report.

6

8

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

9

LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS

9.1

There are no further legal and governance issues.

10

DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1

A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed as the
information contained in the report is information that will be publicly available.

11

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

11.1

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed as the content
relates to previous information and issues considered.

12

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

12.1

None.

13

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

13.1

None.

14

CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

14.1

The purpose of the report is to summarise the matters for consideration and
approval that has bene presented to Employment and Appeals Committee. This is
not a mandatory requirement but is considered best practice.

15

BACKGROUND PAPERS

15.1

None.

16

APPENDICES

16.1

None.

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.
7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Report No: 67/2021
PUBLIC REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE
7 July 2021

APPRENTICESHIP ACTION PLAN
Report of the Strategic Director for Resources
Strategic Aim:

All

Exempt Information

No

Cabinet Member(s)
Responsible:

Cllr o Hemsley, Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for
Policy, Strategy and Partnerships, Economy and Infrastructure

Contact Officer(s): Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic
Director for Resources
Carol Snell, Head of Human
Resources
Ward Councillors N/A

01572 758159
Sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk
01572 720969
csnell@rutland.gov.uk

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee:
1. Notes the Council’s Apprenticeship Action Plan (Appendix A)

1

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To present to the Committee, an Apprenticeship Action Plan for the Council – this
follows the approval of the Strategy in February 2021.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

Employment and Appeals Committee has previously been updated on our progress
and achievement as part of the Apprenticeship Levy and Public Sector
Apprenticeship Target that had been introduced in 2017. This was followed by a
Strategy which was presented in February 2021.

2.2

Members are supportive of the Strategy in that it reflects Rutland’s context as an
employer and feel it is pragmatic and achievable. We discussed the complexity of
the job market in 2020 and how the working environment that emerged as a result
of the Pandemic, had hindered our progress. We had taken the opportunity to reflect
and review and hence this has informed our Action Plan as presented in Appendix
A.

2.3

Our Vision – as outlined in the Strategy is

9





To deliver an Apprenticeship programme that is available to individuals from all
ages, from those who have limited or no work experience/qualifications to those
wanting a career change.
To embed Apprenticeships within the workforce and as an integral part of local
workforce planning.
Apprenticeships to be recognised across the organisation as a highly effective
means for us to build our pipeline of skills and future talent.

3.

OUR ACTION PLAN

3.1

Whilst the Apprenticeship Levy and Public Sector Apprenticeship Target places a
‘target’ on us – the aim of our strategy is beyond the ‘numbers’. We have a strong
employee development ethos with a commitment to strengthening our skill base
within the organisation through high quality learning and development opportunities.

3.2

For 2021, we are in fact on track to exceed our overall target starts, largely because
we have 10 staff in Community Support who are doing their Adult Care Worker
L2/L3. However, in other parts of the organisation, the take up is very low. Therefore
the action plan reflects:


continual progress to recruiting new Apprentices through scrutiny of vacancies
across the organisation – and not just rely on where we know we can achieve
our target,



promoting the use of Apprentices as qualification/professional development
for existing staff – educating managers and staff of what is available and how
individuals career and professional development can be enhanced,



the support needed to manage Apprentices well so that they can be fully
effective members of our teams, achieve their qualification and hopefully
progress to permanent roles. Support both for managers and the Apprentice
through access to mentoring support.

3.3

Progress through the action plan will be monitored through Human Resources with
quarterly updates provided to the Senior Management Team.

4.

CONSULTATION

4.1

There are consultation requirements arising out of this report.

5.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

5.1

Working towards the Apprenticeship Levy and target became a requirement under
the Government scheme introduced in 2017.

5.2

The provision of a Strategy and Action Plan enables us to document our
commitment to supporting Apprentices for new joiners and further training for
existing staff. This could still continue outside of a Strategy document but would lack
the strength of message and Member support.

10

6.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Any further training costs associated with the delivery of the action plan can be met
from the Training Budget.

7.

LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS

7.1

The Council must be compliant with relevant government regulations.

8.

DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

8.1

A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed as there are
no risks/issues to the rights and freedoms of natural persons.

9.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

9.1

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed as there is no
differentiation for the provisions against the Protected Characteristics.

10.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

10.1

There are no Community Safety implications arising from this report.

11.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

11.1

The Council has an overall duty of care to its employees which means taking all
steps which are reasonably possible to ensure the health, safety and wellbeing of
staff. Clear and fair policies and procedures can also be a key factor in building trust
and reinforcing commitment to our staff and help improve staff retention, productivity
and performance and greater employee engagement.

12.

CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

12.1

The adoption of an Apprenticeship Strategy and Action Plan provides us with a clear
statement of commitment and actions that will enable us to progress against the
Strategy.

13.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

13.1

There are no additional background papers to the report.

14.

APPENDICES

14.1

Appendix A – Action Plan.

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.
11

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Apprenticeship Strategy
2021-2022
ACTION PLAN

1

Action
Quarter 1 Targets

Strategic aim(s)

Progress

Nominate an SMT Apprenticeship Champion.

Promote and embed
apprenticeships

Agreed at SMT 10 June 2021 –
Dawn Godfrey

Quarter 2 Targets
Undertake a ‘lessons learned’ process – why some apprentices have
succeeded, why some have not?
Incorporate a mid-year and end of year check-in session with
apprentices, their manager, their tutor, and HR.

3

Develop a network group to promote apprenticeship opportunities to
Rutland’s Care Leavers, including representatives from Early Help and
the Through Care team. Rutland care leavers to be guaranteed an
interview for apprenticeship vacancies.

13

2

4

5

6

Promote and embed
apprenticeships

Grow the number of
apprenticeships

Create a portfolio of case studies from staff who have completed
apprenticeships (in a range of subjects) at the Council. Promote to all
staff via newsletters, presentation at All Staff Conversations, and local
team meetings.

Promote and embed
apprenticeships

Create an apprenticeship guide for all staff, explaining what
apprenticeships are, and the benefit to individuals and teams.

Promote and embed
apprenticeships

Make information available to all staff that outlines specific appropriate
apprenticeship standards on offer. These will be programmes that
develop core capabilities (such as customer service, leadership and

Grow the number of
apprenticeships

Grow the number of
apprenticeships
Grow the number of
apprenticeships

7

8

management), and address our hard to recruit roles, specific
professional skills gaps.

Develop skills and career
pathways

Managers to apply scrutiny of vacancies at the recruitment approval
stage, to assess whether roles can be ‘entry level’ apprenticeship roles;
or if more advanced, whether the postholder could complete an
apprenticeship standard to grow / develop particular professional skills.

Grow the number of
apprenticeships

Create an Apprenticeship Peer Support Group, to enable apprentices
to share learning and experiences amongst each other.

Promote and embed
apprenticeships

Develop skills and career
pathways

Develop skills and career
pathways

Quarter 3 Targets
9

14

Work with local schools and colleges to promote apprenticeship
opportunities at the Council.

Grow the number of
apprenticeships

10 Identify and train a small group of apprenticeship mentors, to be
matched to apprentices when they join the Council.

Promote and embed
apprenticeships

11 Develop a manager support toolkit, outlining the skills, behaviour and
key information needed to successfully manage an apprentice.

Promote and embed
apprenticeships

Quarter 4 Targets
12 Apprentices to present to SMT / DMT at the end of their apprenticeship
- to showcase the skills they have gained, and celebrate their success.

Promote and embed
apprenticeships
Grow the number of
apprenticeships

2

Agenda Item 9
Report No: 68/2021
PUBLIC REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND APPEALS COMMITTEE
7 July 2021

FUTURE WAYS OF WORKING – A HYBRID MODEL
Report of the Strategic Director for Resources
Strategic Aim:

All

Exempt Information

No

Cabinet Member(s)
Responsible:

Mr O Hemsley, Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for
Policy, Strategy and Partnerships, Economy and Infrastructure

Contact Officer(s): Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic
Director for Resources
Carol Snell, Head of Human
Resources
Ward Councillors N/A

01572 758159
Sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk
01572 720969
csnell@rutland.gov.uk

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee:
1. Notes progress and development of the Council’s approach to a future working model
for its staff as we move to a post pandemic world.

1

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To update the Committee on progress of a future working model that enables the
Council to continue to effectively deliver its services to customers, support our staff
to be productive and achieve a healthy work life balance, and contributes to the
Council’s objective of minimising its carbon footprint.

2

BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT

2.1

In March 2020 at the start of Lockdown 1, we quickly moved from our standard
operating model to a remote model for those staff who were able to work from home.
Many of our staff have continued to work either from a site (building specific) or
within the community eg. Community support services.

2.2

There is consistent acknowledgement that we have made it work through
technology and people, and a range of support wrapped around it. Our IT team
quickly provided laptops and network access to enable staff to continue working; we
rolled out ‘Teams’ as a key tool to help us keep engaged; and we provided regular

15

updates, bulletins and guidance notes to keep us as informed, connected and
productive as much as we could, given the very difficult circumstances. In the main,
teams have proved highly resilient and flexible, dealing well with the challenges
whilst coping and adjusting to a global pandemic.
2.3

We did not anticipate that over a year on, remote working would still be the working
arrangements for most staff. For example, as at 28 April 2020, over 60% of staff
were working at home, a year later in April 2021, slightly less but still over a half of
the workforce.

14

OTHER

8
1

SELF-ISOLATING

15
29

NORMAL WORKPLACE

15
56

WORKING FROM HOME

62
0

10

20

30

Apr-21

40

50

60

70

Apr-20

Note: Other = annual leave, maternity leave, not working (service stood down/not rota’d)

2.4

Our ways of working have therefore evolved around a remote working arrangement,
and we have heard from staff that as a result:
 They have a better work life balance – improved health and wellbeing and
family life.
 Improved productivity – developed new and better ways of working; less
paperwork, less printing.
 There is a desire to retain some flexibility about work location going forward.

2.5

It is important to clarify that remote working does not suit all staff. During the periods
of lockdown, where home working has not been possible for staff eg. due to
availability of an appropriate workstation or negative impact on wellbeing, we have
facilitated a small number of staff to continue to work from the office. Some have
found the lack of separation between home and work very difficult; personal and
family circumstances are not conducive to home working; they need more regular
social interaction with colleagues. For many, they still feel that coming together with
colleagues from time to time is important and necessary – although this doesn’t have
to be in the office. These messages are equally important when looking at working
arrangements going forward.

2.6

There is no doubt that we have all reduced our carbon footprint over the past 18
months. Ongoing reduced commuting between home and work, together with less
travel to external meetings, will enable us as an employer to directly contribute to
the Council’s net-zero carbon footprint goal.

16

3

WHAT IS THE HYBRID MODEL?

3.1

According to data from the Office of National Statistics, prior to COVID-19 only
around 5% of the workforce worked mainly from home. In addition, according to
research by the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD), before
the pandemic, 65% of employers either did not offer regular working from home at
all or offered it to 10% or less of their workforce. Their report - ‘Embedding new ways
of working post-pandemic’ shows that – after the Pandemic has ended - some 40%
of employers expect more than half their workforce to work regularly from home.

3.2

A wide range of research, including a YouGov Survey and further CIPD research,
indicate that the majority of workers want to continue to work from home at least
some of the time, presenting new opportunities for organisations to establish new
ways of working.

3.3

What we are hearing across all sectors, is that while some employees want to work
from home all the time after the pandemic, most would prefer a balance where they
are in the office for some of the week and at home for the remainder. This has led
to the use of the term hybrid working.

3.4

Many organisations are now considering what ‘hybrid’ means for them, how they
might meet this new employee demand, and what will need to be in place in order
for these new ways of working to be effective. The full benefits of hybrid working as
a specific form of flexible working are yet to be fully researched but we can expect
that it will, when properly implemented and supported, lead to similar benefits for
both employees and organisations alike.

3.5

Researchers are also reporting that organisations who do not support flexible forms
of working may risk increased employee turnover, reduced employee engagement
and limitations on the ability to attract talent in the future. Hybrid working also
provides other opportunities for organisations in terms of reducing estate and
facilities costs, enabling employee wellbeing, higher levels of employee job
satisfaction, reduced absence rates, and supporting diversity and inclusion.

3.6

Our current approach is to adopt this hybrid model for our staff as far as we can
and we have commenced discussions with the staff group on this basis. Paragraph
4 outlines how this model and our approach is developing.

4

HOW MIGHT THIS WORK FOR OUR BUSINESS AND STAFF?

4.1

Our general principles behind any future model is that it is able to:
 Meet the needs of staff, continuing with the benefits of working from home as
far as possible.
 Enable the business and our services to operate as effectively and efficiently
as possible for customers, Members and staff.
 Enable a return to the office for those who cannot/prefer not to work from
home.

17

4.2

The approach we are taking is:
 Learn from ourselves – how has it been for us, what have we done, and what
are our staff saying?
 Learn from other’s experiences – feedback from our networks.
 What will support it working?

4.3

There are some caveats attached to the stages and timescales of how we move
forward, in particular the Vaccination Centre will occupy a large proportion of
Catmose until September meaning that part of the building remains unavailable for
staff to work from. In addition, the movement out of Lockdown on 21 June and any
ongoing safe working arrangements will need to be factored in – such as wearing of
face masks, social distancing, testing.

4.4

Our key milestones and timescales currently are:
(NB. Employee wellbeing programmes and support continues throughout)

Phase 1 – Now to October 2021
Continue as now – staff work from home if possible.
Re-equipping of offices with workstations – in particular re-positioning of desks.
Establish Corporate Framework – see para 4.5
Review of Health and Safety obligations – awaiting Gov. Safe Working
guidance.
Ongoing support to managers and staff – Managing Remotely. Manager’s
workshops currently in place.
Phase 2 – November to January 2022
Time to establish a way of working – balance and rhythm – review, learn, adjust.
Culture change, expectations and behaviours. Feedback from staff – how is it
going? What do we need to change?
Space utilisation study – what is usage of our office estate looking like – how
under occupied it is?
Consider impact of emerging working practices on existing policies, terms and
conditions.
Phase 3 – February to March 2022
Property Strategy
Policy and contractual changes if necessary.
Wider use of technology that support access to information and improvement
in business processes.

4.5

The Corporate Framework will provide the detail of the initial boundaries and ‘rules’
that we will work to. These include:

18

a) Expectations and behaviours of Managers and their staff
b) The balance of working at home/in the office can be determined between the
line manager and employee against consideration of:
i) Where the job can and needs to be delivered from
ii) Any specific tasks or elements of the job that can only/should only be done
from an office
iii) What best enables the team to keep connected with immediate and wider
colleagues, other partners, customers
iv) Individual engagement and self-motivation
v) Technology – ie. access to relevant systems
vi) Ensuring a DSE complaint workplace at home
vii) Employee wellbeing and personal needs/circumstances.
c) In this first phase, no staff will be deemed as 100% working from home. We
consider that some interaction and face to face contact with others is important
for employees’ wellbeing and team engagement. Managers will therefore
agree a balance of office attendance and the regularity.
d) There will be occasions when it is necessary for an employee to attend the
office for short periods eg. induction, face to face training delivery, workshops
that are more conducive to face to face engagement.
e) In the main and where operationally practicable, meetings will continue to be
held remotely; meeting rooms will be configured to enable ‘hybrid’ meetings
to accommodate staff who are working from the office and at home.
f) It is understood and acknowledged that arrangements across the organisation
may vary from team to team dependent on service need, roles and individual
circumstances and preferences.
g) In Phase 1 there will be minimal change to Catmose – this avoids adaptions
and associated costs until a full utilisation study has been completed. Staff will
be able to access their legacy office and this will enable those staff who cannot
or do not wish to work from home, to return to the office.
h) There will be no change to existing policies, terms and conditions during
Phase 1. Neither will the Council be making any supplementary payments to
staff whilst working from home (this is emerging as the consistent message
from other authorities). The workplace remains the employee’s ‘admin base’.
i) There will also be some flexibility for managers and staff to determine a work
pattern – this may be within a core hour’s framework or more fluid. Again this
can be determined locally and in line with service need.
j) As now, employees will continue to be responsible for ensuring they have
appropriate Broadband in order to support the necessary network and
systems access.
k) Employees will have access to a set of kit comprising laptop, monitor,
keyboard, mouse – this can be kept either at home or in the office. When
attending the office, employees will be able to work from their legacy office
and connect to the Council’s networks and systems through their laptop.

19

l) Specialist equipment and adjustments will continue to be provided where
necessary and as identified through an Occupational Health referral, specialist
or Access to Work.
m) All working arrangements will be reviewed between the manager and
employee on a regular as part of our Staff Conversation model.
4.6

We have monitored emerging policies and practices in other authorities – nationally
and regionally. Whilst some are more advanced in their accommodation strategies
and taking the opportunity to reduce their office estate, all are looking at new ways
of working and a hybrid model. Some are more able to provide additional kit and
equipment but very few are either currently, or planning to provide staff with a
working from home allowance. As ourselves, many have signposted employees to
the HMRCs tax relief scheme.

4.7

The above framework is still evolving and will be adjusted to reflect feedback from
staff over the next couple of months.

5

CONSULTATION

5.1

We are sharing and consulting with the staff group on the emerging Corporate
Framework. Should subsequent changes be required to HR Policies or employee
Terms and Conditions, this will follow the usual consultation process through the
recognised Trade Unions and then seeking of approval by Employment and Appeals
Committee.

5.2

Feedback from Members has been supportive to empowering our staff to find a
healthy and productive work life balance. In addition, suitable flexible working should
be encouraged, subject to the role and service, and acknowledging that at times
teams and individuals would need to meet collectively.

5.3

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

5.4

The Council could:

5.4.1

Require all staff to return to the building – given the positive benefits of working from
home that some staff have experienced, this would be considered detrimental and
a retrospective step.

5.4.2

Require all staff to work from home – similarly, this would not be conducive to
employee wellbeing as not all staff are able to work from home. Whilst this would
release office estate and provide cost savings, this needs to be considered as part
of the Council’s wider agenda about service delivery, customer access,
accommodation strategy.

6

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no costs associated with Phase 1 of this model.

6.2

As we move to Phase 2 and 3, any adaptions or recommendations that have a
financial impact will be considered with full assessment of potential costs.

20

7

LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS

7.1

There are currently no further legal and governance considerations at this stage.

8

DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

8.1

A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed at this stage
because there are risks/issues to the rights and freedoms of natural persons.

9

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

9.1

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed at this stage as
there is no differentiation across the staff group. Where adaptions are required to
support an employee, these will be fully explored and met where practicable. An
EqIA will be completed should be we move to other models and ways of operating.

9.2

All employees have undertaken a Display Screen Equipment assessment.

9.3

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

9.4

There are no community safety issues arising from this report.

10

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

10.1

Employee health and wellbeing has been a consideration of developing the hybrid
working model. As outlined in this report some employees have experienced
improved wellbeing by being able to work from home; equally where this
arrangement is detrimental to an employee, they have been able and will be able to
work from the office.

11

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1

Environmental implications – the Council’s is committed to meeting the challenge of
climate change and has identified key strategic objectives within the Corporate Plan.
A hybrid working model would mean staff are undertaking less travel between home
and work and therefore contribute to the Council’s zero carbon footprint agenda.
For example:
 An employee commuting 5750km per year
 Based on 25km per day, 46 weeks of the year.
Distance
5750km

C02
1564kg

Trees
These emissions correspond to the yearly
absorption of approximately 53 trees.

(The values given are estimates based on averages, for information purposes, and not
a precise measure of actual emissions which can depend on other factors. CO2
offsetting by planting trees is not, in and of itself, sufficient in the fight against climate
change. Emissions also need to be reduced.)

21

11.2

Human Resource implications – as outlined in para 3, it is anticipated that a hybrid
working model can have a positive impact on employee wellbeing, morale,
recruitment and retention.

12

CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

12.1

Members are asked to note and support our approach to developing a Future Way
of Working for our staff through a Hybrid model.

13

BACKGROUND PAPERS

13.1

No additional background papers to the report.

14

APPENDICES

14.1

There are no Appendices.

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.

22

